












Barrhead Co-op 
First Store on West Side of Main Street 

When the total Barrhead 
area had been canvassed it was 
felt that with the potential sup­
port the move to town was 
imperative. 

The board looked at several 
possibilities some of which 
were Mr. Segall's O.K. Store, 
the Benesch Bakery and a 
building owned by Mr. 
Garrioch, which was then 
occupied by Holmberg's Ladies 
Wear and Beauty Salon, and 
the Barrhead Leader, whose 
editors were Arthur (Pop) and 
Ed Larkins. In Oct. 1945 the 
board approved the purchase of 
the Garrioch building. This 
property consisted of a lot, or 
lots, on the west side of main 
street. The building was 36x40 
ft. with a 12 ft. addition on the 
back. Purchase price was 
$3,700.00 payable as follows: 
$700.00 cash as down pay­
ment, $250.00 at completion of 
sale Nov. 15, 1945, $200.00 
shares purchased by Mr. 
Garrioch and the balance 
payable at $100.00 per month 
with interest at 6 per cent and 
repainted with the name BAR­
RHEAD DISTRICT CO-OP 
LTD. 

The board advertised for a 
manager through newspaper 
advertisements and with the 
Alberta Co-op Wholesale 
Association. In Nov. 1945 Mr. 
Carl Burke was chosen to con­
tinue as manager at a wage of 
$75.00 per month, plus I 1/4 

per cent of sales and 3 per cent 
of saving. This was to take 
effect in Jan. 1946. Some store 
fixtures were bought from Mr. 
Chas. Bassett of Barrhead. 
Inventory from the Mellowdale 
operation was moved to the 
new store. Mr. Harold Gallatin 
was hired as store clerk at 
$18.00 per week. 

It should be understood that 
the Wartime Prices and Trade 
Board was still in effect and 
prices could only be marked up 
a certain percentage . Each item 
had to show the purchase price 
in code and the selling price 
clearly marked. Government 
officials dropped in at their 
convenience. 

Shares in the Barrhead Co­
op were set at $10.00. 
Members could buy any num­
ber of the $10.00 shares, 
although the co-op rule of one 
member, one vote, remained in 
effect. 

The Barrhead store opened 
for business Monday, Jan. 21, 
1946. Within a short time 
changes to the store building 
were necessary. A 14x28 foot 
lean-to was added to the north­
west corner of the main build­
ing at a cost of $548.00. Ed 
Weisgerber was in charge of 
construction. This was used for 
storage of flour, and like items. 
Also, an enclosed area in the 
store was used for oil storage. 
A further 22x28 foot addition 
to the warehouse, with concrete 

foundation and floor, was built. 
Carl Gallatin was in charge of 
this project, and the cost was 
$547.54. A heater was pur­
chased for $50.00 from Mr. 
M.R. Hardy, real estate agent.

With these additions it
became a fair sized area and it 
was difficult to keep produce 
from freezing as there was no 
thermostat on the old coal 
heaters. Carl stayed there many 
nights keeping the fires going. 

By Oct. this venture was 
really doing well and it was 
apparent a younger manager 
was needed. Carl Burke 
resigned and was given a vote 
of thanks for his splendid ser­
vice, and Mr. Martin Hauca 
was hired as manager, effective 
Oct. 16, 1946. He was paid a 
salary of $175.00 per month. 

The A.C.W.A. patronage 
on purchases from the whole­
sale for 1946 was $1,341.00. 

A safe was purchased from 
the Neerlandia Co-op for 
$200.00. In Nov. 1947 the asso­
ciation bought a cash register 
for $165.00 with a one year 
guarantee, and a buy back 
agreement of same machine for 
$100.00 after two years. 

In April 1948 a Co-op 
Group Insurance plan was pur­
chased for all members who 
had made purchases of over 
$100.00 in 1947. Audit cost for 
1947 was $186.50. 

In Oct. 1948 the Barrhead 
Co-op entered into a manage­
ment agreement with the 
wholesale, A.C.W.A. In this 
agreement A.C.W.A. would 
supply a manager to operate the 

store, and was to supply 
accounting and audit services 
for an agreed fee. This left the 
local board to look after mem­
bership related business and 
local policy making. The bene­
fits to the local store by this 
agreement may have been a 
better selection of managers, 
and more uniform merchandis­
ing under the direction of the 
wholesale. The wholesale was 
assured of the constant support 
from the local association in 
the field of inventory purchas­
es. It would appear that the 
down side was a loss of direct 
control of the local operation, 
however in this time frame 
there were about 25 retail co­
ops in Alberta with manage­
ment agreements. Many lasted 
for only a few years, while 
some continued successfully 
for years. 

In Jan. 1949 an "all pur­
chases by cash only" policy 
was incorporated. 

The annual meeting state­
ment in 1949 showed savings 
for distribution of $5,131.00. 
There was also a motion from 
this meeting to instruct the 
board to purchase suitable 
property for a new store. A res­
olution was passed re share 
capital - all members must 
have $100.00 in shares before 
cash payment on patronage 
dividends. 

In May 1949 Mr. J. Coffey 
became our new manager. Mr. 
Ollie Bredeson sold the Co-op 
a house for $3,000.00 which 
was used as the store manager's 
residence. 



Co-op Store 
on East Side of Main Street 

Expansion was discussed 
and passed by the membership 
at the Annual Meeting on 
March 5, 1949. A committee of 
Bob Mohrmann, Henry Loitz 
and Carl Gallatin was autho­
rized to purchase two lots from 
the U .F.A. for the sum of 
$2,500.00. This was the site of 
the Town (U.F.A.) Hall which 
was destroyed by fire. 

At the June 14, 1949 meet­
ing it was decided to borrow 
money at 4% interest from Co­
op members to help pay for the 
cost of building. It was agreed 
by the Co-op and Avard 
Oulton, who was building next 
door, to have a common wall to 
save costs to both parties. 
Cement was scarce at the time, 
but blocks were plentiful, so 
the buildings walls and base­
ment were made of blocks. In 
later years when the street was 
packed for paving, the west 
wall had to be reinforced. Al 
Schulte was in charge of con­
struction for a cost of 
$28,000.00 

The store opened October 
24, 1949. 

Up to 1957 there were the 
usual problems of two minor 
break-ins, a leaking roof, and 
some small upgrading. The 
stoker for the coal furnace mal­
functioned and caught fire, 
causing considerable smoke 
damage. 

Management Services with 
Alberta Co-op Wholesale 

Association were cancelled in 
April of 1957. 

Maximum amounts of 
donations to groups, authorized 
by the board, was $2.00. 

Sales advertisements were 
to be put in the local paper 
every two weeks in 1959. An 
agreement with A.C.W.A. was 
struck to sell fertilizers on con­
signment. 

In 1960 A.C.W.A. was 
amalgamated with Federated 
Co-operatives of Saskatoon. 

A board room in the base­
ment was made available in 
January 1961 for the use of the 
Co-op Guild. 

The finance committee 
took an option on land, which 
was owned by Mr. Schneider, 
for a lumber yard. 

The annual meeting of 
1961 took the form of a 
Smorgasbord with a meeting to 
follow and has maintained that 
format to date. 

June 1, 1961 saw the open­
ing of a fresh meat department. 

The basement was renovat­
ed for hardware, small gift 
items and all dry goods, and 
opened in September, 1961. 

New double pane windows 
were installed, doors to go with 
the new entrance, and a stair­
way leading to the basement. A 
coffee bar was installed on the 
north side. 

Land was purchased for a 
fertilizer complex south of the 
railroad tracks and F.C.L. built 

a shed in November, 1965. 
In November, 1966, plans 

for a Service Centre were 
approved. This opened July­
August, 1968. 

The large fertilizer ware­
house plans were approved in 
November, 1967. 

Busby Co-op asked to 
amalgamate with Barrhead. 
Rich Valley and Mayerthorpe 
were also interested in amalga­
mation, but after investigation, 
the Board decided it was not 
feasible. 
In 1970, the decision was made 
to open a petroleum outlet. 
There was also discussion on a 
new store. 

The north side of the ser­
vice centre was to be extended. 

In March, 1973, the fertiliz­
er sheds and equipment, owned 
by F.C.L., were purchased out­
right by the Barrhead Co-op 
Ltd. Also in 1973, the tires, bat­
teries and accessories depart­
ment was opened May 1st, and 
land was purchased from Jack 
Koch for the service center. 

March 5, 1974 the mort­
gage of the uptown store was 
burned at the annual meeting. 
Land was purchased for the 
new store. 

The year 1975 was busy 
with plans and financing, via 
bonds, debentures, mortgages 
and loans for the construction 
of the new store. 

We were saddened by the 
sudden death of manager Ernie 
Kulmatyski in June, 1975. 
Larry Rupert was hired by the 
board as new manager. 

Pin presentation. 
Left to right: Allan Geis, Ernie 
Kulmatyski, Leonard Lindquist 

Co-op float 
with Catholic Church in background 

Co-ops are more than bricks, mor­

tar and sleel: Co-ops are people. 

(Harry fowler) 


























